


VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA 

AUGUST 6, 2018 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Trustee Guethle called the meeting to order. 
 
ROLL CALL 
In attendance:  Trustee Mark Guethle, Trustee Mark Carroll, Mayor Dale Berman, Village 
Administrator Steve Bosco, Finance Director Bill Hannah, Community & Economic 
Development Director Mike Toth. 
 
AUDIENCE COMMENTS – None 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Approval of the Operations Committee Minutes dated 5/7/18 
Motion for approval made by Trustee Carroll and seconded by Trustee Guethle.  All in favor.  
Motion approved (2-0). 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

1. Police Actuarial Valuation  
Finance Director Bill Hannah stated that the Village is required by law to maintain a police 
pension trust fund.  Currently there are 29 active police officers and 15 retirees or other vested 
beneficiaries.  The Village currently pays out $860,000 annually.  The police officers currently 
pay 9.91% of their salary as officer contributions.  Benefits are defined by state statute.  Officers 
hired after January 1, 2011 are provided reduced benefits, known as Tier 2.  Per state law, the 
Village must be 90% funded by 2040.  The Village adopted a resolution in 2011 for 100% 
funding.  Every year the Village does an actuarial of the fund.  The valuation as of May 31, 2017 
reflected that the Village had $25.6 million in accrued pension liabilities and about $16.2 million 
in actuarial assets.  The Village’s contribution to the fund reflects $1,000,047.00 a year.  The 
Village is in the process of finalizing the valuation for May 31, 2018.  Foster and Foster wants 
the Village to consider three changes for the upcoming valuation. 

   
i. New retirement disability and termination rates – Employees were staying longer in their 

positions than assumed and there was less turnover.  That change in assumption would 
lower the liabilities and contributions. 

ii. Salary increase assumptions – Wage growth has not been what it was in the past.  This 
reduced salary growth assumptions. 

iii. Interest investment assumption – Consider a discussion of moving from 7% to 6-1/2%.  
MB Financial also provided their 10-outlook assumption and recommended a 6-1/2% 
level.   

 
Hannah stated that the net impact is that the first 2 changes would be a net decrease on the 
upcoming contribution and the change from 7% to 6-1/2% would be an increase.   About 



$160,000 would be the impact for next year’s police pension contribution by implementing these 
changes. 
 
Hannah added that if the Village moves forward with these changes, they would be implemented 
for the December 2018 levy and be effective with the next upcoming budget for 2020. 
 

2. 110 John Street T.I.F. Grant Application 
Community & Economic Development Director Mike Toth said that the property owner is 
seeking $2,462.50 for five new awnings on the building.  Lowest of the bids was for $4,925.  
Awnings are a TIF eligible expense and therefore there were no issues from the committee 
regarding this request.   
 

3. Abandoned Vehicles Text Amendment 
Toth said that Chapter 8 of the Municipal Code declares abandoned vehicles to be unlawful and a 
public nuisance.  Chapter 8.04 also has exemptions for abandoned vehicles.  One of those is 
historical vehicles over 25 years of age.  This presents issues when there are historical vehicles 
that are in a state of disrepair.  Toth said that the text amendment would remove the exemption 
vehicles over 25 years of age.  There were no issues from the committee on this request.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to adjourn made by Trustee Carroll and seconded by Trustee Guethle.  All in favor.  
Motion approved. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Lori J. Murray 
Village Clerk 
  
                
 



Village of North Aurora 

Memorandum 
 

 

 

To: 

 

Government Operations Committee 

 

From: 

 

CC: 

 

Bill Hannah, Finance Director 

 

Steve Bosco, Village Administrator 

 

Date: 

 

September 19, 2018 

 

RE: 

 

Update of Village’s Investment Policy and New Investment Pool 

 

 

The Village has had in place since at least 1998 an Investment Policy governing the investment 

of Village funds.  In 1999 a new State law was adopted requiring municipalities to adopt an 

Investment Policy adopting several criteria and requirements.  The Investment Policy has been 

modified at least five (5) times since then, with the most recent update being adopted by 

Resolution in 2013. 

 

The statutes recommend that the policy be reviewed from time-to-time and any changes adopted 

by the Board.  Staff is proposing the following revisions to the Investment Policy as attached 

with the more significant changes being: 

 

1. Addition of Illinois Trust (an investment pool similar to Illinois Funds) to the list of 

authorized suitable investments. 

2. Revision so that each major investment pool can have no more than 50% of the total 

investment portfolio at any given time. 

3. Reference made to all ethics and conflict of interest policies the Village may have. 

4. Incorporation of recent State law change which allows the Village to invest in corporate 

obligations with a maturity no longer than three years from the date of purchase 

5. Update of items that are considered acceptable collateral for Village deposits in excess of 

FDIC insurance. 

6. Clarification of the maximum, typical maturity for investments up to five years, with 

separate approval required for any investment with a duration longer than five years. 

7. Language clarifying that any more restrictive laws or regulations shall automatically take 

effect, but regulations or laws that are more permissive require separate Village Board 

approval to adopt. 

 

We have also attached information regarding the Illinois Trust investment pool which has had 

consistently very competitive rates compared to the other investment pools of the Village.  Staff 

met with representatives who explained the competitive rate(s) offered and different tiers of 

investments offered with varying durations.  After Committee review and any further discussion 

and changes, the Resolution would be brought for consideration by the Village Board in October. 

 



Resolution No. __________________ 

Resolution to Approve a Revised Investment Policy for the Village of North Aurora 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Village of North Aurora has previously adopted an Investment 

Policy on June 22, 1998 governing the investment of all Village funds except for the 

Police Pension funds; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is important for the Village of North Aurora to review and update 

said policy from time-to-time and for the President and Board of Trustees to approve a 

resolution adopting a revised Investment Policy; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and the Board of 

Trustees as follows: 

 

1. The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein as the material findings of the 

President and the Board of Trustees. 

 

2. This Resolution shall take immediate full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval. 

 

Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 

this _____ day of ___________, 2018, A.D. 

 

 

Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 

this _____ day of ___________, 2018, A.D. 

 

 Mark Guethle  _________  Tao Martinez  _________ 

 

 Mark Gaffino  _________  Mark Carroll  _________ 

 

 Michael Lowery _________  Laura Curtis  _________ 

 

 

Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of trustees of the Village of North 

Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this _______ day of _________________, 2018 A.D. 

 

    

      ___________________________________ 

      Village President Dale Berman 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Village Clerk 



Village of North Aurora Investment Policy Page 1 of 9 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA  

INVESTMENT POLICY 
 

Revised and Adopted by the Village Board: May 20, 2013 

 

1.0 POLICY 

 

It is the policy of the Village of North Aurora to invest public funds in a manner which will 

provide a competitive investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash 

flow demands of the Village and conforming to all statutes governing the investment of public 

funds.  It is the policy of the Village to comply with the Public Funds Investment Act (30 ILCS 

235/) which requires the adoption of a written Investment Policy by the Village Board and any 

changes that may be made to that Act from time-to-time. 

 

2.0 SCOPE 

 

This investment policy applies to all of the financial assets of the Village of North Aurora in all 

Funds, except for the Police Pension Fund which is governed by its own Board of Trustees and 

has a separate investment policy. The following fund-typess are accounted for in the Village of 

North Aurora's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and are covered under this investment 

policy: 

 

2.1 Funds:   General Fund 

Special Revenue Funds 

Capital Project Funds 

Enterprise Funds 

Internal Service Funds 

Trust and Agency Funds (Except Police Pension) 

All other funds created by the Board unless specifically exempt 

 

The Village will consolidate cash and reserve funds from all funds covered under this policy to 

maximize investment earnings and to increase efficiencies with regard to investment pricing, 

safekeeping and administration. 

 

3.0 PRUDENCE 

 

Investments shall be made by persons of prudence with judgment and care under circumstances 

then prevailing. Investments shall be made for investment and not for speculation, considering 

the probable safety of capital, as well as the probable income to be derived. 



Village of North Aurora Investment Policy Page 2 of 9 

 

3.1 The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the "prudent person" 

standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio. Investment officers 

acting in accordance with written procedures and the investment policy and exercising due 

diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk or 

market price changes, provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and 

appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments. 

 

4.0 OBJECTIVE 

 

The primary objective, in priority order of the Village of North Aurora's investment activities 

shall be: 

 

4.1 Safety: Safety of the principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. 

Investments of the Village of North Aurora shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks the 

preservation of capital and the mitigation of credit and interest rate risk in the overall 

portfolio. 

 

4.2 Liquidity: The Village of North Aurora's investment portfolio will remain sufficiently 

liquid to enable the Village to meet all operating requirements that may be reasonably 

anticipated.  This is accomplished by structuring the portfolio so that securities mature 

concurrent with cash needs to meet anticipated demands.  Furthermore, since all possible 

cash demands cannot be anticipated, the portfolio should consist largely of securities with 

active secondary or resale markets.  Alternatively, a portion of the portfolio may be 

placed in money market mutual funds or local government investment pools which offer 

same-day or short-notification liquidity for short-term funds. 

 

4.3 Return on Investments: The Village of North Aurora's investment portfolio shall be 

designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and 

economic cycles, taking into account the Village's investment risk constraints and 

liquidity needs. Return on investment is of least importance compared to the safety and 

liquidity objectives described above. The core of investments are limited to low risk 

securities in anticipation of earning a fair return relative to the risk being assumed. 

 

5.0 DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 

 

The establishment of investment policies is the responsibility of the Village Board. Management 

and administrative responsibility for the investment program is hereby delegated to the Finance 

Director, under the oversight of the Village Administrator Village Administrator who hereby 

delegates the daily administration to the Finance Director who shall establish written procedures 

for the operation of the investment program consistent with this investment policy. This internal 

control directive will direct the use of independent safekeeping of securities and the purchase of 

and sale of securities on a delivery versus payment basis. 

 

6.0 ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

 



Village of North Aurora Investment Policy Page 3 of 9 

The Village Administrator and Finance Director shall refrain from personal business activity that 

could conflict with the proper execution of the investment program, or which could impair their 

ability to make impartial investment decisions. The Village Administrator and Finance Director 

shall disclose to the Village Board any material financial interests in financial institutions that 

conduct business with the Village of North Aurora, and they shall further disclose any large 

personal/investment positions that could be related to the Village's portfolio. Employees and 

officers involved in the Village's investment program shall refrain from undertaking personal 

investment transactions with the same individual with whom business is conducted on behalf of 

the Village. The Village Administrator, Finance Director and any other employees involved in 

the day-to-day administration, accounting or other aspects of the investment program shall abide 

by any ethics or conflict of interest policies or ordinances that may be established by the Village 

from time-to-time. 

 

7.0 AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND BROKER DEALERS 

 

The Finance Director will maintain a list of financial institutions, commercial banks and broker 

dealers authorized to provide investment services. This list will be updated and submitted to the 

Village Board for approval as changes occur. The institutions will be selected based on financial 

condition, proper registrations, level of service and competitive pricing. The Finance Director 

will use a competitive process where practical to evaluate the investments and securities and 

prices of investments and securities.  Broker dealers and investment managers selected will be 

required to read and sign off on the Village’s investment policy and ensure that all investments 

proposed for purchase will conform to the Village’s investment policy and applicable state 

statutes prior to providing broker services. 

 

The Village Board authorizes the Finance Director to invest monies in any federally insured 

financial institution up to the current Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) limits.  

Investments in Certificates of Deposits shall not exceed FDIC limits at any point for the duration 

of the investment. 

 

All broker/dea1ers must provide investments on a "delivery versus payment" basis (the security 

must be physically delivered or confirmed via the Federal Reserve Bank or DTC system before 

the Village's payment for the security is released) and must be primary dealers of government 

securities as listed by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York or regional dealers that qualify 

under the SEC's uniform net capital rule. Commercial banks authorized to provide investments 

on a "delivery versus payment" basis must have at least $500 million in total assets and a 

Sheshunoff (a company that rates the creditworthiness of banks) rating of at least 30. All 

financial institutions and broker/dealers who desire to become qualified bidders for investment 

transactions must supply the Finance Director with the following: 

 

• audited financial statements 

• proof of National Association of Security Dealers certification 

• proof of state registration 

• certification of having read the Village's investment policy 

• depository contracts 

 



Village of North Aurora Investment Policy Page 4 of 9 

8.0 AUTHORIZED AND SUITABLE INVSTMENTS 

 

The Village may invest in any type of security allowed for in the Illinois statutes regarding 

investment of public funds. These investments include, but are not limited to: 

 

• Treasury obligations including bills, notes, bonds and stripped coupons. 

• Bonds, notes, debentures and similar obligation issued by Agencies of the United States 

• Interest bearing savings accounts, certificates of deposit or any other investment 

constituting direct obligations of commercial banks that are FDIC insured or 

collateralized. 

• Short term oObligations of corporations (commercial paper) organized in the U.S. with 

assets exceeding $500 million and rated at the time of purchase at one of the three (3) the 

highest qualifications by at least two of the standard rating agencies which mature not 

later than three (3) years from the date of purchase. Must mature within 

•  180 days from the date of purchase. 

• The Illinois Funds Investment Pools  

• The Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund (Both the Convenience Fund and the 1-3 Year 

Fund) 

• The Illinois Trust (formerly Illinois Institutional Investors Trust) 

• Bonds issued by any county, township, city, village, incorporated town, municipal 

corporation, school district, any State, or political subdivision of any other State pursuant 

to the requirements in the Public Funds Investment Act.  Bonds shall be rated at the time 

of purchase within the four (4) highest general classifications established by a rating 

service of nationally recognized in rating bonds of States and political subdivisions. 

• Money market mutual funds permissible under state law 

• Consistent with GFOA recommended practices; extreme caution should be exercised in 

the use of derivative instruments. Any purchase of derivatives, other than U.S. Treasury 

strips, requires written authorization from the Village Administrator. 

 

9.0 COLLATERALIZATION 

 

It is the policy of the Village of North Aurora to require that funds on deposit in excess of FDIC 

limits be secured by some form of collateral in order to manage custodial credit risk. The Village 

will accept any of the following assets as collateral: 

 

• U. S. Treasury Securities 

• Obligations of U. S. Federal Agencies or States 

• Obligations, GO Bonds or Revenue Bonds of Municipalities or Other Government 

Agencies 

• Bonds, notes, or other securities constituting direct and general obligations of the United 

States; 

• Bonds, notes, or other securities constituting the direct and general obligation of any 

agency or instrumentality of the United States, the interest and principal of which is 

unconditionally guaranteed by the United States; 



Village of North Aurora Investment Policy Page 5 of 9 

• Bonds, notes, or other securities or evidence of indebtedness constituting the obligation 

of a U.S. agency or instrumentality; 

• Direct and general obligation bonds of the State of Illinois or of any other state of the 

United States; provided, however, the bonds shall be rated at the time of purchase within 

the 4 highest general classifications established by a rating service of nationally 

recognized expertise in rating bonds of states and their political subdivisions; 

• Revenue bonds of the State of Illinois or any authority, board, commission, or similar 

agency thereof; provided, however, the bonds shall be rated at the time of purchase 

within the 4 highest general classifications established by a rating service of nationally 

recognized expertise in rating bonds of states and their political subdivisions; 

• Direct and general obligation bonds of any city, town, county, school district, or other 

taxing body of any state, the debt service of which is payable from general ad valorem 

taxes; provided, however, the bonds shall be rated at the time of purchase within the 4 

highest general classifications established by a rating service of nationally recognized 

expertise in rating bonds of states and their political subdivisions; 

• Revenue bonds of any city, town, county, or school district of the State of Illinois; 

provided, however, the bonds shall be rated at the time of purchase within the 4 highest 

general classifications established by a rating service of nationally recognized expertise 

in rating bonds of states and their political subdivisions; 

 

(The Village reserves the right to accept/reject any form of the above assets) 

 

The amount of collateral provided will not be, less than 105% of the fair market value of the net 

amount of public funds secured. The rate of fair market value of collateral to the amount of funds 

secured will be reviewed at least quarterly by the Village and additional collateral will be 

required when the ratio declines below 105% level.  Pledged collateral will be held by the 

Village or in safekeeping and evidenced by a safekeeping agreement.  If collateral is held in 

safekeeping, it may be held by a third party identified by the Village or by an escrow agent of the 

pledging institution.  A collateral agreement will preclude the release of the pledged assets 

without the written approval of the Village, but the agreement may allow for an exchange of 

collateral of like value.  If a tri-party collateral agreement exists, provisions for release of the 

pledged assets may occur without prior written approval of the Village provided the collateral 

ratio never declines below the 105% level and collateral securities are consistent with this policy. 

 

10.0 SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY 

 

All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements, entered into by the 

Village of North Aurora shall be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis. 

Securities will be held by a third party custodian designated by the Village Board and evidenced 

by safekeeping receipts. 

 

11.0 DIVERSIFICATION 

 

In order to reduce the risk of default and manage credit risk, the Village shall diversify its 

investments by security type,  and institution and investment pools. Therefore, the investment 



Village of North Aurora Investment Policy Page 6 of 9 

portfolio of the Village of North Aurora shall generally not exceed the following diversification 

limits. unless specifically authorized by the Board of Trustees: 

 

• No financial institution shall hold more than 5075% of the Village's investment 

 portfolio, exclusive of U.S. Treasury securities in safekeeping.  This does not include 

custodial accounts, where a financial institution will hold individual securities that are in the 

Village’s name 

• No more than 50% of the Village's portfolio may be invested in U.S. Government 

 Agencies, and no more than 25% may be invested in the obligations of a single 

 agency. 

• Total deposits Investments in the Illinois Funds shall not exceed 6550% of the Village's 

investment portfolio. 

• Deposits Investments in the Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund (1 to 3 year portion) 

shall not exceed 30% of the Village's investment portfolio. 

• Deposits Investments in the Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund (Convenience Fund) 

shall not exceed 7550% of the Village’s investment portfolio 

• Investments in the Illinois Trust shall not exceed 50% of the Village’s investment 

portfolio. 

• Brokered certificates of deposit shall not exceed 4035% of the Village's investment 

 portfolio. 

• Investments in bonds of states, counties, villages, cities, townships, school districts or any 

other political subdivision of a state shall not exceed 25% of the investment portfolio 

• Corporate obligations Commercial paper shall not exceed 10% of the Village's 

investment portfolio. 

 

12.0 MAXIMUM MATURITES 

 

To the extent possible, the Village of North Aurora will attempt to match its investments with 

anticipated cash flow requirements. In order to manage interest rate risk and unless matched to a 

specific cash flow, the Village will not directly invest in securities maturing more than three five 

(5) years from the date of purchase. 

 

Reserve funds may be invested in securities exceeding three five (5) years if the maturity of such 

investments are made to coincide as nearly as practicable with the expected use of the funds. 

Any investment purchased with a maturity longer than three five (5) years must be supported 

with written documentation explaining the reason for the purchase.  Any investment purchased 

with a maturity longer than five years must also be approved by the Village Administrator. 

 

13.0 INTERNAL CONTROLS 

 

The Finance Director is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure 

designed to insure that the assets of the Village of North Aurora are protected from loss, theft or 

misuse. The internal control structure shall be designed to provide reasonable assurance that 

these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of the 

control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and 

benefits require estimates and judgments by management. 



Village of North Aurora Investment Policy Page 7 of 9 

 

Accordingly, the Finance Director shall also establish a process for annual independent review 

by an external auditor to assure compliance with policies and procedures. 

 

14.0 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

 

The investment portfolio will be managed in accordance with the parameters specified within 

this policy. The portfolio shall obtain a market average rate of return during a market/economic 

environment of stable interest rates. The Village's investment strategy is passive, which means 

securities are generally intended to be held until maturity. Given this strategy the basis used by 

the Finance Director to determine whether market yields are being achieved on a 3-month rolling 

average shall be the three-month U.S. Treasury Bill.  The investment program shall seek to 

augment returns above this threshold, consistent with risk limitations identified herein and 

prudent investment principles. 

 

15.0 REPORTING 

 

The Finance Director will prepare a monthly investment report that summarizes the current 

investment portfolio. The report will list all current investments at their book value and market 

value, their yield to maturity and maturity date, income earned and the average weighted yield 

for the portfolio. The report will also determine the percentage of each category of investment 

compared to the total portfolio. The report will also include a comparison to the performance 

benchmark.  The Finance Director shall communicate such information monthly to the Village 

Administrator and Village Board of Trustees. 

 

16.0 INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION 

 

The Village of North Aurora's investment policy shall be adopted by resolution. This policy shall 

be reviewed on a regular basis by the Finance Director and any modifications made thereto must 

be approved by the Village Board of Trustees. 

 

In the event that any state or federal legislation or regulation should further restrict instruments, 

institutions or procedures authorized by this policy, such restrictions shall be deemed to be 

immediately incorporated in this policy.  If new legislation or regulation should liberalize the 

permitted instruments, institutions or procedures, such changes shall be available and included in 

this Policy only after written notification to the Board and their subsequent approval of said 

changes. 

 

17.0 LEGISLATION AND DOCUMENTATION 

 

The Village’s investment program shall comply at all times with the Illinois Public Funds 

Investment Act (30 ILCS 235/1 et seq.) and other state laws governing the investment of public 

funds, as amended from time to time.  In the event of any conflict between this Policy and the 

Illinois Public Funds Investment Act and other state laws, the provisions of the Illinois Public 

Funds Investment Act and other state laws shall control. 



Village of North Aurora Investment Policy Page 8 of 9 

 

The Finance Director will maintain a list and is hereby authorized to deposit Village monies, in 

accordance with 65 ILCS 5/3.1-35-50, in financial institutions as attached hereto as Appendix A.  

The Finance Director shall review this list from time to time and shall submit any modifications 

thereto to the Board for approval.   

 

 



Village of North Aurora Investment Policy Page 9 of 9 

Village of North Aurora 

Investment Policy 

Appendix I 

 

List of Commercial Banks and Authorized Depositories 
U.S. Bank 

Old Second National Bank 

J. P. Morgan Chase 

Charter One Bank 

Fifth Third 

BMO Harris N.A. 

Bank of America 

Citibank 

MB Financial Bank 

First State Bank 

Wintrust Financial Corporation 

 

List of Authorized Broker Dealers 

Fifth Third Securities, Inc. 

PMA Financial Network, Inc. 

 

 

 

 



Putting Your Dollars to Work 
Many investors concerned with meeting cash flow needs 
may keep more cash on hand than is needed. While this 
is convenient, excess amounts of cash can be costly. 
Perhaps you know of expenses that need to be met within 
the next three, six, nine, or 12 months. Cash that is not 
needed immediately may generate additional interest 
earnings if invested according to a schedule that can meet 
expenses down the road.

Many investors are familiar with Illinois Trust’s daily liquidity 
vehicle for governmental entities, the Illinois Porfolio, IIIT 
Class.* Illinois Trust also offers additional options that can 
help make the most of your cash by lining up investments 
with their expected use and doing so at relatively 
competitive interest rates. 

Types of Fixed-Rate Investments
Many governmental entities have accounts with known 
revenue and expenditure streams, with sources including 
federal or state subsidies and tax revenues. These 
accounts are ideal for the following fixed-rate investments 
offered by Illinois Trust: 

 � Illinois TERM: Allows investors to lock in a 
competitive fixed rate of return for a specified 
timeframe. TERM Portfolio investments are based 
on a pool of open-market securities similar to those 
invested in the Illinois Portfolio and are matched to 
the dollar commitments and maturities selected by 
the individual investor. The investment period ranges 
from 60 days to one year, and interest is paid to 
investors upon maturity. Illinois TERM is rated AAAf 
by Fitch.**

 � Certificates of Deposit (CDs): Allows investors to 
invest in FDIC-insured CDs from a network of banks 
nationwide. FDIC-insured CDs offer fixed competitive 
rates and flexible terms, typically ranging from 60 
days to one year (longer options may be available). 

Both principal and interest are FDIC-insured up to 
allowable limits. Purchases for larger amounts are 
split into numerous CDs so that each CD (including 
interest) within the program is within the $250,000 
FDIC limit.

What are the Benefits? 
Conveniently linked to your Illinois Portfolio account, fixed-
rate investment solutions provide you with an opportunity 
to: 

 � Secure competitive interest rates

 � Ladder maturities to meet known cash flow needs

 � Select from a wide range of maturity dates 

 � Plan around your interest income stream

 � Diversify your portfolio’s maturity structure

 � Optimize interest earnings

How It Works with Your Illinois Porfolio, IIIT Class 
Account 
Fixed-rate investments are designed to build upon and 
complement your Illinois Trust relationship. Funds can be 
transferred directly from your Illinois Porfolio, IIIT Class 
account to purchase TERM or CD investments and vice 
versa. In this way, your investments are linked and work in 
tandem to meet both daily liquidity and longer-term needs. 

CLASS

IIIT

Seeking to Optimize Interest Earnings?

Explore Your Options with Fixed-Rate, Fixed-Term Investment Programs

*The Illinois Portfolio offers two classes: the IIIT Class and the IPDLAF+ Class. The IPDLAF+ Class is offered only to park districts, forest preserve districts, 
conservation districts and joint recreational programs and shares of the IIIT Class are not available for purchase by these entities. The Illinois Institutional Investors 
Trust and the Illinois Park District Liquid Asset Fund Plus (collectively the “Funds”) entered into a Plan of Reorganization (the “Reorganization”) to merge the assets 
of the Funds into one common law trust. As a result of this Reorganization, the Board of Trustees of the Illinois Institutional Investors Trust established two classes of 
shares for the existing IIIT Portfolio, namely, the IIIT Class and the IPDLAF+ Class. Effective February 27, 2012, the Illinois Institutional Investors Trust was renamed 
the Illinois Trust and then the Illinois Park District Liquid Asset Fund Plus was dissolved and its outstanding shares were assumed by the Illinois Portfolio, IPDLAF+ 
Class.

**The AAAf rating reflects Fitch Ratings’ (“Fitch”) review of the Term program’s investment and credit guidelines, the portfolio’s credit quality and diversification, as 
well as the capabilities of PFM Asset Management LLC as investment adviser. It indicates the highest underlying credit quality (or lowest vulnerability to default). 
However, it should be understood that this rating is a not “market” rating nor a recommendation to buy, hold or sell the securities. For a full description on rating 
methodology visit www.fitchratings.com.

Overnight Liquidity Overnight Liquidity Liquidity Reserve Liquidity Reserve 

Everyday operating 
cash needs

Everyday operating 
cash needs

Assets matched to
future cash flows

Assets matched to
future cash flows

Illinois Portfolio
IIIT Class

IPDLAF+ Class

Illinois Portfolio
IIIT Class

IPDLAF+ Class

Illinois TERM or CD
Fixed competitive rates, fixed terms, 

60 days to one year and beyond

Illinois TERM or CD
Fixed competitive rates, fixed terms, 

60 days to one year and beyond

Linkage of Investment Options Through Pool RelationshipLinkage of Investment Options Through Pool Relationship



Why Use Illinois Trust for Fixed-Rate Investing? 
In addition to the convenience of working with Illinois Trust’s dedicated team, you 
benefit from the professional management of PFM Asset Management LLC (PFMAM), 
investment adviser to Illinois Trust. PFMAM’s trading volume and market knowledge 
can help obtain competitive prices for securities, while PFMAM’s access to a network of 
previously approved banks nationwide helps procure competitive CD rates. 

By working with PFMAM’s professionals who understand the unique nature of your 
cash flows, such as the timing of revenue collection, you can seek to prudently identify 
and invest excess cash, enhancing your investment income while still aiming to meet 
important cash flow needs.

This information is for institutional investor use only, not for further distribution to retail investors, and does not represent an offer to sell or a 
solicitation of an offer to buy or sell any fund or other security. Investors should consider the Trust’s investment objectives, risks, charges and 
expenses before investing in the Trust. This and other information about the Trust is available in the Trust’s current Information Statements, which 
should be read carefully before investing. A copy of the Trust’s Information Statement for the IIIT Class of the Illinois Portfolio and Illinois TERM 
may be obtained by calling 1-800-731-6870 or is available on the Trust’s website at www.iiit.us A copy of the Information Statement for the IPDLAF+ 
Class and Illinois TERM may be obtained by calling 1-800-731-6830 or is available on its website at www.ipdlaf.org. While both the IIIT and IPDLAF+ 
Classes of the Illinois Portfolio seek to maintain a stable net asset value of $1.00 per share and the Illinois TERM series seek to achieve a net 
asset value of $1.00 per share at its stated maturity, it is possible to lose money investing in the Trust. An investment in the Trust is not insured 
or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other government agency. Shares of the Trust are distributed by PFM Fund 
Distributors, Inc., member Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) (www.finra.org) and Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) 
(www.sipc.org). PFM Fund Distributors, Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of PFM Asset Management LLC.

Contact Us Today 
Taking advantage of every opportunity for incremental yield can mean the difference between a tight budget and room to 
breathe. Investing funds in a combination of the Illinois Porfolio, IIIT Class, Illinois TERM, and CD investment options is 
a solution designed to help you meet multiple objectives: safety, liquidity, and yield. We invite you to contact your current 
representative to learn more about how a laddered, fixed-rate investment could enhance your investment program. 

Adding laddered, 
fixed-rate 

investments to 
your portfolio 

provides earnings 
potential. 

4770© March 2018 PFM Asset Management

Michelle Binns
Senior Managing Consultant

(312) 523-2428
binnsm@pfm.com

Danny Nelson
Senior Managing Consultant

(312) 523-2434
nelsond@pfm.com

Jeffrey Schroeder
Managing Director

(312) 523-2423
schroederj@pfm.com

Amber Cannegieter
Key Account Manager

Josh Groff
Client Consultant

Scott Bilheimer
Client Consultant

Melissa Rodgers
Client Service Representative

Illinois Trust Client Services Group
1-800-731-6870

www.IIIT.us
CSGMidwestRegion@pfm.com



IIIT Class at a Glance 
The IIIT Class seeks to help you safely maximize yield while balancing 
liquidity needs.

In addition to the IIIT Class, investors have access to additional 
services offered by PFM Asset Management LLC, Investment Adviser 
to the Trust. Included in these additional services are a Fixed Income 
Investment Program, Separate Account Management, and Bond 
Account Management.

 
Limited to Permitted Investments 
The primary goal of IIIT Class is to ensure the safety and security 
of public funds entrusted to it. IIIT Class’ investments are limited to 
instruments in which school districts and municipalities are permitted 
to invest under applicable Illinois law. Because we understand the 
importance of safety, the Trust is rated AAAm* by Standard and Poor’s. 
The Trust is overseen and reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

 
Flexibility 
IIIT Class provides a competitive variable rate of return and offers 
investor flexibility to meet your cash management needs. 

If you are interested in hearing more about the investment and 
reporting services available for operating funds and bond issuances, 
contact your IIIT Class representative.

 

CLASS

IIIT

* Standard & Poor’s fund ratings are based on analysis of credit quality, market price exposure, and management.  According to Standard & Poor’s 
rating criteria, the AAAm rating signifies excellent safety of investment principal and a superior capacity to maintain a $1.00 per share net asset 
value.  However, it should be understood that the rating is not a “market” rating nor a recommendation to buy, hold or sell the securities.  For a full 
description on rating methodology, visit Standard & Poor’s website (http://www.standardandpoors.com/en_US/web/guest/home).

Exclusively for Illinois Public Entities

• One-day minimum 
investment period

• $1.00 balance 
requirement

• No minimum additional 
deposits or withdrawals

• Monthly statements

• No transaction charges 
or fees

• Unlimited accounts

• Interest earnings 
calculated daily and paid 
monthly

• AAAm rating from 
Standard & Poor’s*

To learn more: 
1-800-731-6870

www.iiit.us



How To Use IIIT Class 
To take advantage of the competitive rates and flexibility offered through 
IIIT Class, simply call IIIT Class’ toll-free number (1-800-731-6870). Our 
representatives stand ready to help you achieve your investment goals. 

Key Contacts from Investment Adviser, PFM Asset Management LLC:

This information is for institutional investor use only, not for further distribution to retail investors, and does not represent an offer to sell or a 
solicitation of an offer to buy or sell any fund or other security. Investors should consider the Trust’s investment objectives, risks, charges, and 
expenses before investing in the Trust. This and other information about the Trust is available in the Trust’s current Information Statements, which 
should be read carefully before investing. A copy of the Trust’s Information Statement for the IIIT Class of the Illinois Portfolio and Illinois TERM may 
be obtained by calling 1-800-731-6870 or is available on the Trust’s website at www.iiit.us. A copy of the Information Statement for the IPDLAF+ 
Class and Illinois TERM may be obtained by calling 1-800-731-6830 or is available on its website at www.ipdlaf.org. While both the IIIT and IPDLAF+ 
Classes of the Illinois Portfolio seek to maintain a stable net asset value of $1.00 per share and the Illinois TERM series seek to achieve a net 
asset value of $1.00 per share at its stated maturity, it is possible to lose money investing in the Trust. An investment in the Trust is not insured 
or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other government agency. Shares of the Trust are distributed by PFM Fund 
Distributors, Inc., member Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) (www.finra.org) and Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) 
(www.sipc.org). PFM Fund Distributors, Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of PFM Asset Management LLC.

IIIT Class, a class of the
Illinois Portfolio, of the 
Illinois Trust (the “Trust”), 
offers Illinois school 
districts and municipalities 
the ability to invest funds 
short-term at a competitive 
variable rate and a 
program to lock-in rates for 
longer-term maturities at a 
fixed-rate, thus providing 
the opportunity to diversify 
investments, enhance 
returns, and minimize 
interest rate risks.

Jeffrey Schroeder
Managing Director
(312) 523-2423
schroederj@pfm.com

Michelle Binns
Senior Managing Consultant
(312) 523-2428
binnsm@pfm.com

Amber Cannegieter
Key Account Manager
1-800-731-6870
cannegietera@pfm.com

Danny Nelson
Senior Managing Consultant
(312) 523-2434
nelsond@pfm.com

Board of Trustees and Officers 

William R. Farley 
Asst. Superintendent Business Operations  

Wheaton-Warrenville CUSD #200 

Jason S. Myers 
Director of Finance & Personnel 
Arlington Heights Park District 

Robert W. Taylor 
Director of Finance 

Deerfield Park District 

Fred C. Hohnke 
Commissioner 

Woodridge Park District 

Eugene C. Varnado 
Treasurer 

Thornton Township Schools 

Arnold C. Uhlig 
Treasurer 

Medinah School District #11 

Christine Garry 
President 

Barrington Park District 

Peter Murphy 
President & Chief Executive Officer 
Illinois Association of Park Districts 

(Ex-officio member) 

Debbie Trueblood 
Executive Officer 

Illinois Park & Recreation Association 
(Ex-officio member)

4767



Village of North Aurora 

Memorandum 
 

 
 

To: 

 
Government Operations Committee 

 

From: 

 

CC: 

 
Bill Hannah, Finance Director 
 
Steve Bosco, Village Administrator 

 

Date: 

 
September 27, 2018 

 

RE: 

 
Budget Amendment for FY 2018-19 

 

 
Two (2) personnel/compensations items are included for the proposed budget amendment. 
 
The first item concerns staffing in the Police Department records unit.  Last year, after the retirement of a full-
time records specialist, that employee was retained on a limited part-time basis during the transition and training 
of a new part-time employee.  That employee has since continued to assist in a limited, part-time basis and is 
being requested to remain on a permanent, part-time basis due to the current and continued workloads of the 
records division.  A separate memo regarding the request is attached.  An adjustment to Village’s authorized 
staffing level would be made, if approved.  The estimated annual cost is approximately $18,000.  
 
The second item is an adjustment to the compensation range for the Custodian position.  During the budget 
process, positions are evaluated based on job descriptions, current duties and comparable compensation and 
adjustments are made, if necessary.  One review not completed at the time the budget was approved concerned 
the Custodian position.  Based on a change in job duties, internal equity review and comparable information, a 
mid-year adjustment to the compensation of this position in the amount of 6% and is reflected in the attached 
range. 



 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO: MAYOR BERMAN AND VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FROM: DAVID C. FISHER, CHIEF OF POLICE 

SUBJECT: BUDGET AMENDMENT-PART TIME CLERK 

DATE: OCTOBER 15, 2018 

CC: STEVEN BOSCO, VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR 

  

Issue 

Staff would like to retain a part-time clerk to help keep up with the increased 
workload that the records division is experiencing.   

Discussion 
 

Late last year a full-time employee retired and a new full-time employee was hired.  
During the subsequent training of that employee, the former employee was retained 
on a limited part-time basis to assist with training and a busy workload.  Since that 
time, it has become apparent due to an increased workload that an additional part-
time employee is needed in order to address the demands of the records division.  
Although this was not budgeted in terms of authorized staffing and a specific dollar 
amount, it is now requested for consideration. 

The workload in the records division continues to increase.  Due to this issue, the      
current approved staffing level of two full-time clerks and one part-time clerk is 
having difficulty completing required tasks on time.  The department is experiencing 
an increase in almost all facets of the job.  Through August, 2018, compared to the 
same time last year, the number of tickets issued is up 65%, the number of warnings 
issued is up 173%, and ordinance violations issued are up 456%.  Also, the 
department has made 74 DUI arrests so far this year, compared to 69 DUI arrests all 
of last year.  This is an increase of 76% for the same time frame and 7% overall.  The 
department has had 92 administrative tows so far this year, compared to 55 tows all 
of last year.  We have also experienced a 17% increase in reports taken compared to 
this time last year.  The increase in all of these areas means more data entry, more 
reports to complete and process and more paperwork to push out to the state’s 
attorney’s office and private attorneys as well.  Certain reports, such as domestic 
violence reports and juvenile arrest reports, have to be forwarded to the state’s 
attorney’s office the next day. 

Some recent changes in the law will have an effect on the workload as well.  Every 
year, certain juvenile records will have to be expunged from the record system.  This 
is a time consuming task, as all traces of the juvenile’s information has to be erased 
from the system, such as fingerprints, reports, arrest reports, photos, etc.  Certain 



2 
 

marijuana arrests will also have to be removed from the system.  Another area that 
has the potential to be time consuming are FOIA requests.  Depending on the 
request, some can take several hours.  The department often gets requests for several 
years’ worth of reports.  Those all have to be located, printed out and in many cases, 
redacted.  It is difficult for the current staff to keep up with the above workload, 
while still dealing with people coming into the desk needing something, phone calls, 
or anything else that causes work stoppage.  Below are some of the tasks the clerks 
perform: 

Walk-Ins Mail/Fax Phone Calls Incident Reporting Case Reports 

Crash Reports Ticket Entry FOIA SAO Requests Subpoenas Alarms  

Expungements  Solicitor Permits Fingerprints Supplemental Reports 

Court Scheduling 

                                 

Conclusion 

Staff is requesting to retain a previously retired clerk to work 10 hours per week who 
has experience with the North Aurora Police Department, who will not need to be 
trained and has many years of experience in the record department.  This clerk held 
on after retirement and assisted the department during a transition period when a 
new full-time clerk was hired and needed to be trained.  Staff feels that this part-time 
addition will help in keeping up with the demand of an ever increasing workload.  
Many of the listed tasks have to be completed in a timely manner (some by statute).    



Non-Union Positions

Administrative Intern

     2080 Hourly

Custodian

     2080 Hourly

Customer Service Specialist

     2080 Hourly

Fiscal/AP Specialist

Building Permit Technician

Police Records Specialist

Fiscal/Utility Billing Specialist

     2080 Hourly

Accounting Assistant

Administrative/GIS Analyst

Executive Assistant/DVC

     2080 Hourly

Code Enforcement Officer

     2080 Hourly

Chief Building Inspector

Information Technology Manager

Accounting and Finance Manager

     2080 Hourly

Streets Superintendent

Water Superintendent

     2080 Hourly

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8 Step 9 Step 10 FT PT

31,845          33,093        34,362         35,714         37,086           38,522        40,102         41,746         43,451         45,261         0 0

15.31            15.91          16.52           17.17           17.83             18.52          19.28           20.07           20.89           21.76           

36,026          37,419        38,875         40,373         41,954           43,638        45,406         47,258         49,192         51,210         1 0

17.32            17.99          18.69           19.41           20.17             20.98          21.83           22.72           23.65           24.62           

39,208          40,747        42,349         43,992         45,718           47,507        49,462         51,480         53,602         55,806         1 0

18.85            19.59          20.36           21.15           21.98             22.84          23.78           24.75           25.77           26.83           

43,347          45,011        46,800         48,630         50,523           52,520        54,662         56,888         59,218         61,630         0 1

1 0

2 2

1 0

20.84            21.64          22.50           23.38           24.29             25.25          26.28           27.35           28.47           29.63           

51,534          53,569        55,664         57,818         60,070           62,422        64,971         67,658         70,425         73,310         0 1

1 0

24.78            25.75          26.76           27.80           28.88             30.01          31.24           32.53           33.86           35.245

54,246          56,389        58,594         60,861         63,232           65,707        68,390         71,219         74,131         77,168         1 0

26.08            27.11          28.17           29.26           30.40             31.59          32.88           34.24           35.64           37.10           

55,016          57,179        59,384         61,714         64,085           66,602        69,326         72,197         75,130         78,229         1 1

26.45            27.49          28.55           29.67           30.81             32.02          33.33           34.71           36.12           37.61           

68,578          71,240        74,048         76,918         79,914           83,034        86,424         89,981         93,642         97,490         1 0

1 0

1 0

32.97            34.25          35.60           36.98           38.42             39.92          41.55           43.26           45.02           46.87           

83,803          86,694        90,064         93,558         97,219           101,005      105,144       109,450       113,922       118,643       1 0

1 0

40.29            41.68          43.30           44.98           46.74             48.56          50.55           52.62           54.77           57.04           

Authorized

Village of North Aurora

Salary Schedule and Authorized Staffing

FY 2018-19

Does not inlcude additional pay rates for licenses or stipends.



Deputy Chief

     2080 Hourly

Community Development Director

Finance Director

Public Works Director

     2080 Hourly

Police Chief

     2080 Hourly

Village Administrator

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8 Step 9 Step 10 FT PT

Authorized

Village of North Aurora

Salary Schedule and Authorized Staffing

FY 2018-19

94,328          98,010        101,816       105,789       109,949         114,234      118,893       123,760       128,835       134,118       2 0

45.35            47.12          48.95           50.86           52.86             54.92          57.16           59.50           61.94           64.48           

99,902          103,293      107,328       111,509       115,856         120,370      125,320       130,437       135,782       141,336       1 0

1 0

1 0

48.03            49.66          51.60           53.61           55.70             57.87          60.25           62.71           65.28           67.95           

108,867        112,570      116,938       121,514       126,235         131,165      136,552       142,147       147,992       154,024       1 0

52.34            54.12          56.22           58.42           60.69             63.06          65.65           68.34           71.15           74.05           

No Established Salary Range 1 0

Does not inlcude additional pay rates for licenses or stipends.



 

Village of North Aurora   

Memorandum 
 

 

 

To: 

 

Government Operations Committee  

 

From: 

 

Bill Hannah, Finance Director 

 

CC: 

 

Steven Bosco, Village Administrator 

 

Date: 

 

September 26, 2018 

 

RE: 

 

Revisions to Human Resources Manual 

  

Attached are proposed revisions to the Village’s Human Resources Manual covering two 

(2) different changes.  As a reminder, benefits and terms of employment for non-union 

employees (and union employees where appropriate) are covered in this manual. 

 

1. As previously discussed with the Village Board, the Village has been working for 

calendar 2019 to reduce the number of official village holidays from twelve (12) 

to eleven (11), and provide employees with an additional eight (8) hours of 

personal time in lieu of.  This would allow Village offices to remain open an 

additional day.  The official holiday eliminated would be President’s Day.  This 

change has been successfully agreed to through the collective bargaining 

agreements.  As stated above this change would go into effect for the 2019 

calendar year. 

 

2. The Village joined the Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative for the 

provision of employee health coverages and other benefits effective January 1, 

2018.  IPBC’s fiscal year begins July 1st and the Village’s plan year for benefits 

begins January 1st.  The attached change would clarify that the employee 

contributions for each calendar plan year would be set based on the current 

percent allocations and premiums in effect as of January 1st.  Essentially, 

employees would not be charged for any additional increase that may occur 

during the calendar year to Village premiums through IPBC on July 1st, but would 

take effect the following January 1st. 



Village of North Aurora 

Human Resources Manual                Amended: December 18, 2017 

 

 Page 21 

 

CHAPTER 5 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND ELIGIBILITY 

5.1 Employee Eligibility 

 

An employee’s eligibility to receive benefits as outlined in this chapter is determined by the 

following categories of employment status as previously defined: 

 

1. Full-Time Employee: Full-time employees are eligible for all benefits described in this 

chapter unless specifically stated otherwise. 

 

2. Regular Part-Time Employee (1,000 Hours a Year or More): Employees in this 

classification are only eligible for: 

• Workers’ compensation benefits 

• Participation in the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (except sworn police) 

• Prorated holiday pay based on the full-time equivalency of their position 

• Overtime if the total hours worked or compensated is more than forty (40) in the 

workweek 

• Participation in voluntary life insurance, short-term disability insurance, 

accident/hospitalization and other related coverages and programs from time-to-time 

• Participation in the Village’s 457 deferred compensation program 

 

3. Regular Part-Time Employees working less than 1,000 hours a year and 

Seasonal/Temporary employees are eligible only for workers’ compensation benefits 

and overtime if hours worked is greater than forty (40) in the workweek. 

 

4. Pursuant to the Affordable Care Act (ACA) the Village will also provide the health 

insurance benefit option to Regular Part-Time Employees working on average thirty 

(30) or more hours in a work week.  The cost to the employee will be the same as other 

Full-Time Employees. 

 

As a reminder, if a conflict exists between a provision in this manual and a provision in a 

collective bargaining agreement with a recognized collective bargaining unit the provision in the 

collective bargaining agreement will take precedence. 

 

Employees may refer to the appropriate plan documents for eligibility procedures and plan 

provisions concerning benefit programs.  Naturally, it is the legal documents that must be 

followed in the administration of these plans, and these plan documents will govern in the event 

any discrepancy exists.  Please see the Finance Department for specific information. 

5.2 Holidays 

 

The Village recognizes twelve eleven  (121) holidays during the calendar year: 

 



Village of North Aurora 

Human Resources Manual                Amended: December 18, 2017 

 

 Page 22 

 

Holiday Date Observed 

New Year’s Day January 1 

President’s Day National Holiday (Third Monday In February) 

Spring Holiday Friday Before Easter 

Memorial Day Last Monday in May 

Independence Day July 4 

Labor Day First Monday in September 

Veteran’s Day November 11 

Thanksgiving Day Fourth Thursday in November 

Day After Thanksgiving Friday After Thanksgiving 

Christmas Eve December 24 

Christmas Day December 25 

New Years Eve December 31 

 

If a holiday’s observed day falls on a Saturday the holiday will be observed on the preceding 

Friday.  If a holiday’s observed day falls on a Sunday the holiday will be observed on the 

following Monday.  If a holiday falls on a Saturday and the preceding Friday is also a Holiday, 

the two consecutive holidays will be observed on Thursday and Friday.  If a holiday falls on a 

Sunday and the following Monday is also a holiday the two consecutive holidays will be 

observed on Monday and Tuesday.  Holiday time is defined as eight (8) hours of compensation 

per holiday.   

 

Holidays falling within an employee’s scheduled vacation shall not count against the employee’s 

vacation time. 

 

Employees on an unpaid leave of absence are not eligible to receive holiday pay. 

 

In the event an employee does not work the scheduled day before or after a holiday and is not on 

an authorized absence that employee shall not receive holiday pay until an excusable absence or 

proof of illness is presented to the satisfaction of the Department Head. 

5.3 Personal Days 

 

Employees will be granted two (23) personal days equivalent to twenty-foursixteen (1624) hours 

of leave on January 1 that can be used for any purpose during the year.  Personal leave days must 

be used during the calendar year they are granted and cannot be carried over to the following 

year.  Personal days will not be paid out upon termination of active employment.  A minimum of 

one (1) hour increment must be used unless otherwise agreed to by the Department Head.  

 

Personal days for new employees will be prorated depending on the quarter in which their 

employment begins.   

 

 



Village of North Aurora 

Human Resources Manual                Amended: December 18, 2017 

 

 Page 23 

 

Employment Begins Time Earned 

01/01 – 03/31 12 18 Hours 

04/01 – 06/30 8  12Hours 

07/01 – 09/30 4 6 Hours 

10/01 – 12/31 0 Hours 

5.4 Vacation Leave 

 

Vacation leave is provided on the basis that employees benefit by periodic intervals of rest and 

recreation and time away from their job with the Village and that an appropriate work-life 

balance contributes to the employee’s overall well-being and ability to effectively carry out their 

job responsibilities.  Accrual of such benefits derives from continued and ongoing service to the 

Village.   

 

Employees accrue vacation leave based on their full-time anniversary date with the Village and 

the number of years of service based on the schedule below.  Vacation leave will be earned to the 

employee on a per pay period basis on the 1st and 2nd pay dates of each month (or twenty-four 

(24) times per year, also the “Accrual Rate.”) 

 

 

Years of Service 

Annual 

Vacation Amount 

 

Accrual Rate 

Start Through Completion of 3 Years 2 Weeks (80 Hours) 3.333 

Beginning Year 4 Through Completion of Year 5 2 ½ Weeks (100 Hours) 4.166 

Beginning Year 6 Through Completion of Year 

10 

3 Weeks (120 Hours) 5.000 

Beginning Year 11 Through Completion of Year 

20 

4 Weeks (160 Hours) 6.666 

Beginning Year 21 and After 5 Weeks (200 Hours) 8.333 

 

The vacation accrual rate for Department Head positions will never be less than three (3) weeks 

per year but otherwise consistent with the above table. 

 

Maximum Accrual and Exceptions 

Vacation leave will be earned per the schedule above and leave will be deducted from the 

employee’s total time when used.  The maximum amount of vacation leave that an employee will 

be allowed to accumulate in their vacation bank will be equal to one (1) year’s Annual Vacation 

Amount as set forth in the schedule above plus one (1) week (“Maximum Accrual”).  Once an 

employee reaches the Maximum Accrual vacation leave will cease to accrue until an employee is 

no longer at the Maximum Accrual.    Employees are responsible for monitoring the amount of 

vacation leave they have accumulated and providing sufficient notice and request to use such 

leave so that the Maximum Accrual is not exceeded. 

 

The Village Administrator may approve a temporary accumulation of vacation leave greater than 



Village of North Aurora 

Human Resources Manual                Amended: December 18, 2017 

 

 Page 24 

 

the Maximum Accrual, at his sole discretion based on the operational needs of the department 

and Village.  Such additional accrual may not exceed one (1) additional week of vacation leave 

greater than the Maximum Accrual.  Employees granted a temporary accumulation of vacation 

leave greater than the Maximum Accrual must use enough vacation leave within a twelve (12) 

month period after Village Administrator approval of the temporary accumulation in order to be 

at or below the Maximum Accrual at the end of the twelve (12) month period. 

 

Vacation Leave Requests 

The Village will make reasonable attempts to accommodate vacation leave requests, subject to 

the operational needs of each Department.  Generally no more than two (2) weeks of vacation 

may be taken consecutively.  Requests longer than two weeks require Department Head and 

Village Administrator approval. 

 

Vacation leave will be paid at the employee’s normal straight time hourly rate.  Employees 

should typically attempt to request the use of vacation leave at least one (1) week in advance.   

 

The Department Head and Village Administrator may authorize an advance of vacation leave of 

up to two (2) days in order to accommodate an employee’s vacation leave that may result in an 

employee’s vacation leave accrual being negative after the vacation usage.  Employees must be 

in good standing with the Village to be eligible for consideration. 

 

Accrued but unused vacation leave shall be paid out to the employee upon termination of 

employment.   

 

Additional Vacation Leave Benefits 

The Village Administrator is authorized to grant additional vacation benefits to prospective 

employees as a condition of employment, recognizing the need of the Village to attract highly 

qualified candidates as part of an overall wage/benefit proposal.  Such benefits shall be made in 

writing at the time of initial employment, become part of the employee’s file and communicated 

as such to the Village Board. 

 

Payment in Lieu of Vacation Time 

Eligible employees not represented by a collective bargaining agreement may elect to “cash out” 

a limited number of hours of vacation time on an annual basis.  Annually in November the 

Finance Department will inform employees of the option and provide forms and deadlines for 

employees to consider the option for the year.  Generally, the process will be conducted so that 

the payout of accrued time is processed by the first paycheck in December. 

 

In order to be eligible an employee must have at least one (1) year of continuous full-time 

employment as of November 30th, not be in any introductory status and be in good standing with 

the Village.  Employees may elect to cash out up to forty (40) hours of vacation time annually.  

Payment will be made at the employee’s current hourly rate as of the last day of the prior two-

week payroll period being paid on the 1st payday of December.  Employees electing to cash out 



Village of North Aurora 

Human Resources Manual                Amended: December 18, 2017 

 

 Page 28 

 

5.8 Health Coverage Plans 

 

The Village provides health coverage to eligible employees and their dependents.  The coverage 

or insurance may take one of several configurations including an HMO, PPO, HSA or other type 

of program.  Exact plan configurations will be determined annually by the Village.  Coverage 

begins the first day of employment.  Employee contributions will generally be set for the plan 

year based on premiums in effect at the beginning of the plan year, with amounts based on the 

following percentages: The current employee contributions to the total cost of the group health 

coverage plan are as follows:  

 

HMO   8% 

PPO 20%    

HSA 20% 

 

The above percentage contributions apply to all types of tiers that may be defined such as single, 

family, employee plus child and employee plus spouse. 

 

Employees may refer to the appropriate plan documents for eligibility procedures and plan 

provisions concerning benefit programs.  Naturally, it is the legal documents that must be 

followed in the administration of these plans, and these plan documents will govern in the event 

any discrepancy exists. 

5.9 COBRA Coverage 

 

Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) continuation of group 

health plan coverage is available for qualified employees for predetermined amounts of time.  If 

an employee opts to continue coverage they will be responsible to pay the full monthly premium 

to the Village.  Failure of the former employee to pay the Village full premium when due will 

result in the forfeit of continuing coverage eligibility in accordance with current COBRA law. 

5.10 Continuation of Coverage Upon Retirement 

 

Employees eligible for health insurance benefits may continue participation in the existing health 

coverage program upon retirement with the Village.  Employees will be responsible for 100% of 

the cost of the coverage.  Continuation may continue past medicare-eligible age at the discretion 

of the employee.  Terms and conditions of the coverage may be affected by State statute and 

federal law. 

5.11 Dental Insurance 

 

The Village may provide employees with the option of enrolling in a dental insurance program 

that may take a variety of forms.  The employee contribution towards the program will be set by 

the Village from time to time.     



 

Village of North Aurora   

Memorandum 
 

 

 

To: 

 

Government Operations Committee 

 

From: 

 

CC: 

 

Bill Hannah, Finance Director 

 

Steven Bosco, Village Administrator 

 

Date: 

 

September 21, 2018 

 

RE: 

 

Estimate of Tax Levy for Purposes of Truth in Taxation 

  

 

Attached is a summary of information for discussion on the proposed property tax levy 

estimate for 2018.   Village Board approval of an estimate is required for the November 

5th Village Board meeting.  Actual Village Board approval of all regular and special 

service area tax levies is scheduled for December 3rd. 

 

Summary 

Property taxes represent about 19% of all General Fund revenues and are a key revenue 

source to fund Village services and pension obligations, especially given the fluctuations 

the Village has experienced in sales tax and income tax revenue and the increasing 

pension obligations the Village must fund.  Current State law restricts any increases in 

total property taxes extended to the rate of inflation as described below.  This inflation 

allowance can not be deferred to a future year. 

 

To recap, the total 2017 property tax extensions received during calendar 2018 were 

$2,388,160 (excluding debt).  This was broken out by specific levies as follows: 

Corporate; 

584,857.14 ; 24.5%

Liability Insurance; 

263,186.72 ; 11.0%

IMRF; 97,477.87 ; 

4.1%Social Security; 

170,585.01 ; 7.1%

Police Protection; 

243,687.11 ; 10.2%

Audit; 4,876.16 ; 

0.2%

Police Pension; 

1,020,565.22 ; 42.7%

Unemployment 

Comp; 2,924.69 ; 

0.1%

2017 Property Tax Extensions



  

The Village is a non-home rule municipality that is also subject to the Property Tax 

Extension Limitation Law (PTELL) as dictated by the State.  The statutes limit the 

increase in the total amount of property taxes that can be extended (for capped funds) to 

the annual change in the applicable Consumer Price Index which for this levy year is 

2.1%, or 5%, whichever is less. 

  

In addition, the Village is allowed to “capture” the increase in the equalized assessed 

valuation (EAV) of the Village that is attributable to new construction.  In order to 

“capture” this new growth within its tax base, the Village has typically passed a levy 

higher than what is expected to be extended by the County (through the CPI and new 

construction increases) in order to ensure that the allowable increase due to new 

construction of residential, commercial and industrial growth are fully realized.   

 

The following summarizes the estimated calculations for this year’s potential extensions 

for consideration by the Village: 

 

 Last Year’s Total Property Tax Extensions:  $2,388,160 

 Est. Increase Due to Inflation (2.1%)  $     50,151 

 Est. Increase Due to New Construction: $     66,531  (14,424,625 New EAV) 

 Total Est. Available Extensions:  $2,504,842 

 

EAV Change and New Construction 

The 2018 taxable EAV is currently estimated to increase 7.70% to $543,073,340.  The 

2018 estimate is based on preliminary data from the County Clerk’s office.  This number 

will change and likely lower slightly as final appeals and adjustments are made.  The 

2018 EAV numbers appear to show a strong increase in current property value of about 

4.8%.  The 2018 estimated EAV is based on property sales that occurred during 2015, 

2016 and 2017.   

 



 

 

The 2018 estimated EAV includes an estimated $14,424,625 in new construction EAV.  

This is the largest new construction value since 2008, or the largest in 10 years.  The 

following chart shows the amount of new construction EAV over the last 10 years and 

the resulting additional property tax revenue available made available as a result. 

 

Application of Consumer Price Index  
The index used to determine the increase is the CPI-U or the Consumer Price Index for 

All Urban Consumers.  For the December 2018 levy payable in 2019 this increase is 

2.1%.  Section 18-185 of the Property Tax Code defines “extension limitation” as “…the 

lesser of 5% or the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index during the 12-month 

calendar year preceding the levy year…” This change was measured from December 

2016 to December 2017.  

2.5%

4.1%

0.1%

2.7%

1.5%

3.0%

1.7%
1.5%

0.8% 0.7%

3.1%

3.3%

2.2% 2.3%

1.4%

2.4%

2.1% 2.1%

1.3%

1.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

4.5%

CPI-U History PTELLCPI CPI 3-Year Average

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

New Const. EAV 15,998,83 5,261,725 4,639,401 2,104,571 1,753,399 4,169,825 6,301,134 9,992,479 4,866,878 2,226,999 14,424,62

Revenue 53,377 17,550 17,031 8,613 7,969 21,058 32,494 49,708 23,281 10,547 66,531

 -

 10,000

 20,000

 30,000

 40,000

 50,000

 60,000

 70,000

 -

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

 14,000,000

 16,000,000

 18,000,000



SSA’s 

Last year the Village levied the following amounts for the various SSA’s for the 2017 tax 

levy year. 

 

1. Waterford Oaks   $ 3,700 (Mowing) 

2. Timber Oaks   $ 2,500 (Mowing) 

3. Pinecreek III   $    700 (Mowing) 

4. Willow Lakes   $    400 (Mowing) 

5. North Aurora Towne Center $15,500 (Wetland/Basin Maint) 

 

Staff will be evaluating the SSA amounts necessary to levy over the next several weeks 

and bring more information to the Board for discussion.  State law now requires that the 

Village hold a separate public hearing if an SSA levy is anticipated to increase more than 

5% from last year, or if an inactive SSA is planned on being activated.  It is currently 

anticipated that all of current SSA’s will have to be significantly increased to address 

updated costs of maintenance. 

 

Police Pension Valuation 

The May 31, 2018 police pension valuation was also recently completed.  The valuation 

incorporates the new information required to be included and disclosed per the new 

GASB Statement 67 and 68 reporting standards including statement of changes in the net 

pension liability, changes in the discount rate affecting the total net pension liability, and 

other information. 

 

The attached valuation incorporates the recommendations of the Village’s Operations 

Committee discussion on August 6th to modify certain assumptions in the valuation.  

Those recommendations were to: 

1. Adopt the new retirement, disability and termination rates based on the 

outside study done by the Illinois Department of Insurance in October 2017. 

(delayed retirement and lower withdrawal assumptions).  

2. Adopt revised salary increase assumption tables (slightly lowers assumed 

future increases. 

3. Lower the Interest/Investment assumption rate from the current 7.0% to 6.5%. 

 

These changes and normal actuarial year-to-year results were primarily the reason for the 

increase in the Village’s contribution determination from $1,046,968 to $1,166,171 for 

the 2018 tax levy.  During the last year investment experience for the fund was 6.10% 

versus the assumption of 7.0% and salary increases were 2.75% versus the assumption of 

5.43%.  Due to the smoothing of gains and losses over a five-year period one-fifth of the 

investment gain is recognized in the current year.  The actuarial investment return for the 

fund for the year was then calculated to be 6.11%.   

 

The valuation continues the Board Pension Funding Policy (adopted in 2011) of a 100% 

funding goal with a remaining 23 year closed amortization period.  This is higher than the 

State minimums which incorporate a 90% funding goal by 2040.  The comparative State 

minimum for funding would have been $1,053,001.  The Net Position as a Percentage of 

the Total Pension Liability went from 63.05% to 61.27%.  The Total Pension Liability 



was $28,175,501 and the Fiduciary Net Position was $17,262,779 creating a Net Pension 

Liability of $10,912,722.  

 

Summary and Options 
If the Village adopts a levy which when extended by the County after complying with 

PTELL law realizes all of the allowances provided by CPI and new construction the total 

increase in general property tax revenue that would be estimated to be received would be 

an increase of $116,682 (estimated) or about an increase of about 4.9% to $2,504,842.  

This is significantly higher than in prior years due to the new construction EAV added for 

2018 as a result of the Springs at Orchard and Opus east developments. 

 

Staff has started to analyze what next year’s budget may start to look like, and has taken 

into consideration several positive fiscal/budget indicators: 

• Anticipated completion of a sales tax rebate agreement during the year 

• Increased revenues due to reinstatement of OTB 

• Increased revenues due to local Police DUI prosecution and fine adjudication 

• Increased building permit revenues due to current and anticipated permit 

 

These positives are partially offset by budgetary concerns such as 

• Increased mandatory employer pension contributions 

• Challenging retail environment affecting sales tax revenues and sustainability of 

retail businesses 

• State legislative uncertainty regarding changes to state-shared revenues or 

changes to locally derived revenues such as property taxes 

 

During the early stages of last year’s budget development process in March, 2018, staff 

mentioned in an update to the Board that it would evaluate the feasibility of deviating 

from standard practice of levying to capture all new growth and CPI increases given what 

was anticipated to be more budgetary flexibility for FY 2019-2020 (which is what this tax 

levy is intended to fund).   

 

After discussion, staff feels comfortable that a levy less than the maximum amount can 

be considered, and would suggest a levy of $2,450,000 which is a reduction of 

$54,842 from the maximum possible extensions of $2,504,842.  In this option, the 

Village would essentially be forgoing the 2.1% CPI increase, but capturing the value of 

new construction under the tax extension.   

 

In this scenario, the Village would be freezing the levy to the same total levy as last year, 

$2,450,000.  Assuming every property owner’s EAV changed by the same average 

percentage amount, there would be virtually no increase in property taxes paid to the 

Village by current property owners (with the understanding that different percentage 

changes in EAV will impact a property owner’s total property taxes paid to all 

governments for the year). The Village can also consider a higher levy to capture more 

allowances if it so chooses, however, at this point in time this is currently the lower end 

of options that staff feels comfortable bringing, given fiscal and legislative uncertainties. 

 



Levy Year Levy Year Levy Year Levy Year Levy Year Levy Year Levy Year Levy Year Levy Year Levy Year Levy Year

Category 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Est.

Residential 455,105,924     455,869,473     430,166,785     396,460,429     358,899,978     337,016,726     339,111,156     359,301,370     384,212,041     397,846,748     415,593,285     

Commercial 73,362,075       77,510,259       74,268,198       64,212,904       66,774,379       58,444,313       59,859,375       67,329,121       67,873,407       71,244,763       89,552,694       

Industrial 40,855,140       40,660,653       37,777,327       34,967,983       35,772,199       31,023,446       31,341,315       33,018,080       34,089,473       34,513,524       37,260,456       

Farm 268,650            337,496            378,796            385,110            338,753            336,302            244,838            248,169            275,248            288,822            304,019            

Railroad 169,537            205,003            224,708            268,280            286,904            312,020            316,153            330,034            374,889            362,886            362,886            

TOTAL EAV 569,761,326     574,582,884     542,815,814     496,294,706     462,072,213     427,132,807     430,872,837     460,226,774     486,825,058     504,256,743     543,073,340     

Estimated Actual 1,709,283,978  1,723,748,652  1,628,447,442  1,488,884,118  1,386,216,639  1,281,398,421  1,292,618,511  1,380,680,322  1,460,475,174  1,512,770,229  1,629,220,020  

   Value

Percent of Total

Residential 79.88% 79.34% 79.25% 79.88% 77.67% 78.90% 78.70% 78.07% 78.92% 78.90% 76.53%

Commercial 12.88% 13.49% 13.68% 12.94% 14.45% 13.68% 13.89% 14.63% 13.94% 14.13% 16.49%

Industrial 7.17% 7.08% 6.96% 7.05% 7.74% 7.26% 7.27% 7.17% 7.00% 6.84% 6.86%

Farm 0.05% 0.06% 0.07% 0.08% 0.07% 0.08% 0.06% 0.05% 0.06% 0.06% 0.06%

Railroad 0.03% 0.04% 0.04% 0.05% 0.06% 0.07% 0.07% 0.07% 0.08% 0.07% 0.07%

TOTAL 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Percent Increase

Residential 5.02% 0.17% -5.64% -7.84% -9.47% -6.10% 0.62% 5.95% 6.93% 3.55% 4.46%

Commercial 10.53% 5.65% -4.18% -13.54% 3.99% -12.47% 2.42% 12.48% 0.81% 4.97% 25.70%

Industrial 18.31% -0.48% -7.09% -7.44% 2.30% -13.27% 1.02% 5.35% 3.24% 1.24% 7.96%

Farm -3.69% 25.63% 12.24% 1.67% -12.04% -0.72% -27.20% 1.36% 10.91% 4.93% 5.26%

Railroad 15.22% 20.92% 9.61% 19.39% 6.94% 8.75% 1.32% 4.39% 13.59% -3.20% 0.00%

TOTAL 6.56% 0.85% -5.53% -8.57% -6.90% -7.56% 0.88% 6.81% 5.78% 3.58% 7.70%

Village of North Aurora

Taxable Equalized Assessed Valuation

 -

 100,000,000

 200,000,000

 300,000,000

 400,000,000

 500,000,000

 600,000,000

 700,000,000

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Est.

E
A

V

North Aurora EAV by Category

Railroad Farm

Industrial Commercial

Residential

-20.00%

-15.00%

-10.00%

-5.00%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Est.

E
A

V

North Aurora EAV Percent Change by Category

Residential

Commercial

Industrial



Village of North Aurora

Preliminary Calculations for 2018 Property Tax Levy

Taxable Rate Setting EAV Estimations Percent Increase

Total 2017 EAV 504,256,743                  

   Estimated 2018 New Construction 14,424,625                    2.86%

   Change in 2018 Current EAV/Other 24,391,972                    4.84%

Total 2018 Estimated Taxable EAV 543,073,340                  7.70%

Total Property Taxes Village Debt Service

Subject to Cap Not Subject to Cap TOTAL VILLAGE

2017 Property Tax Extensions 2,388,159.92                 542,307.96                    2,930,467.88               

   Est. Increase Due to CPI of 2.10% 50,151.36                      -                                 50,151.36                    

2018 Property Tax Extension After

Applicable CPI Increase of 2,438,311.28                 542,307.38                    2,980,618.66               

2.10%

Additional Est. Extensions Due to 66,531.42                      -                                 66,531.42                    

     New Construction (Estimated)

TOTAL 2018 Tax Extensions 2,504,842.70                 542,307.38                    3,047,150.08               

  (Preliminary Estimate)

2017 Property Tax Rate 0.473600                       0.107546                       0.581146                     

2018 Property Tax Rate (Estimated) 0.461235                       0.099859                       0.561094                     

Percent Change in Property Tax Rate -2.61% -7.15% -3.45%

Proposed 2018 Property Tax Levy 2,450,000.00                 538,750.00                    2,988,750.00               

Additional Levy "Buffer" to Ensure -2.19%

   Capture of New Construction

Percent Increase 2018 Proposed Levy 2.59% -0.66% 1.99%

   Versus Last Year's 2017 Extensions 61,840.08                      

2018 Est. Extensions vs. 2017 Extensions 4.89% 0.00% 3.98%

2018 Levy vs 2017 Ext 2.59% -0.66% 1.99%

Extensions Forgone 54,842.70                      3,557.38                        58,400.08                    










































	2018.10.01 Operations Com. Agenda.docx
	2018.08.06 Operations Minutes
	Memo - Investment Policy Update 2018-09
	Resolution Investment Policy 2018-09
	Village of North Aurora Investment Policy 2018-09

	Budget Amendment #1 Discussion
	Clerk Request Draft #2
	Memo - Budget Amendment #1
	Personnel Budgets FY 18-19 Budget Revised Budget Amendment

	Human Resources Manual Changes 2018-10
	HRM Changes Pers HI

	Property Tax Levy Estimate
	Valley Green Phase II TIF Request_10.01.2018 Operations
	Space Center Inc. 84 Acre Industrial Development
	Carlson Environmental Site Remediation Proposal
	Synergya Site Remediation Proposal
	Preliminary Site Plan
	EAV



